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o FFIAHT qd FTANA THEEEH HANT WMGHE! (HATHT FFTHT T q91 qarerd

o Ifgw Tr=AT gfaeed AR 9 ¥ I7 Yiqaed SiaH gy afafd, asarde argtadr
7 frarge feerzET Ter 9

o SITGH SHALATIT HTHHT TJ TeTgwehl THTAFRI FRATEATHT TETS TATI |

v T Heea

GfeTerae I ARIAT FEAATRT AT TG WoaTd 3.95 TaeTd TEhl § | LT TG
AT I Aol BIAH TTXehT ATTATT TG HIwaTd (G FEIeAT (a9 qTeAT TRIEehT 3 |
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Fell (& AT

AT L AFFRT AT ATH. 3095 /6, BT HITGeh AT AT FAT (&7 T4 ISR AT
(CCD Ratio) @RS LT =T AT THRTATNT 11 (47T ST (CD Ratio) HTIAH T T T
TH P97 | gfqaed ausl A=A HFEIATR oAl [Hed AT ¥ 0% Gfqerd WWehl B qdql
LTS aTsh ATl 6 Aehebl ol (HETT AT qFIvdT (9T el TRIEH B |

AT AT

qfaraT AWe! AT HFIRIBT ARAT SATAT 33.0% YfTeTT 2! B, S AT A el ATebapl
IATH AT AT R0 FIALTT AT A6 T8ehl g | TG a9 AT FAFqT ¥R.59 Gieqerd et faa |

frsga @it s

gfTaa Al AAAT FFIATERT Fe FHollehl ATITAHT ST Fll (NPL) 0.%0 Ffqerd Y& qirep
B oA TG a9 0,54 Fiaerd Teel {9 |

PP AR

yfdaed aUehl ATHT HFIATHT (T TAT TILT AATAR] FBIUHRT ARTT 2. 0% FIaeTd JEHhl
S T a9 9.9 gfdqerd @l 93 |

LSRR R IR ENER G
YicTeraT auhl A=A FHFAATD! TSR ATITT 0.9 IATT I8! B | HFIATH TSR AT
AT A Aol AThebl IATH JAT FATT 0 FqAqT AT afg Wl & |

FFIATHT FoaTeleh ATATTaTE T AT IS TIqal Tearsd (ICAAP) Tgid FFaedr
e ez RS g | Ik Afad FEAERT IE B GEETET FAAT AZI [T
JFRFT AMGHEGH ATCATIARATNT HFAET T #Tq el GHre=aar qaar fHaaaerer
HATET TS, | FFIA(H] AT SAMGH G AAfTare ST STHT ISl Fea=
Y G=eATeTeh THTAHR] TSHHT T T TRTHT G |

SRGH AT T TaT9 TAHT (Stress Testing)

FEIATS AT ATIGUEHT ATHRAT T I TAT9 IRIEVES Tl oo WAl (Herd anfefeqare
g T SIGH, O ST T9T FHT Bl THAa =GN0 HUSATE I G SIMGH, ATSTEX
gfadaare 99 g SIgy, SR TR UEeare U9 ga IEH AEdl AThad ¥ Ah!
SIHTHIT T FUTAEEHT THI b TTHT T FTABRT GodATeAbh] FATTHEHT ST TAT SHALATIAHT
TRIIFNIES AT SIEH ATeITIA ATATTGIRT [qeelur T THT & | TaTd T qearedr
TfRweT &1 faeawer JHItgE FIHT GoATerd ATATART TSHFAT T TAHT AT AT TEHEHT
QIO JTer ST SBAT GT AR FSTAT T TS ATTHT B | BTAGET TRTHT AT T AT
FHHIAIR] AT FraToE Wl B |

FHAW TSI T qrafadra

Yieaad Uk AAFFAAT HFIAAT FIEAT AT FLATT T oA FHA H@AT 9%, T@ehHT Aigel
5 T {39 FHANEEH @l 49 WWH B |

FHARIEEH! FrATaehrad TH JAT YATUTErATE FAEHNT Jar Iuaed TR AaANId 3597
YT T FHARIEEATS AT R AR ANAHEE (68 AT AN (AZUHT T | HHAREEH
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fqHAT Jhgepl AT WU Tehl FHANGeATs (arq aiad, dfaarR, s afadr @«
TRISE ANTTHT G | Fiaaed auA] ST 93 qaT ANAHeE HRAHHEEHA] FHANEEATS e
TS 5. 3,3%,3Yq @ TRUHI & | TF 99 90 ST FHANIEE ANAHAT FEATRT WTehr {7 |
FIA T 3T FHANIEEATS HHIAMT Ao BT AN THT FHIHT IAEEH! grd faepre T
right man in right place & ATARUTATS TATHFAT ATIRIT TRUH G | A AT e I
YETHeh FTITESATE (A= ATIGUSHT ATHRAT aT [qgeedl o |

e FRER

farTer AT & gfqaed aUHT 9 o ETEEaTe AT T SRTHIRT SEeT SREE g |
A faeareepTaTiiT fafae=T FFITPT Sub agent 1 FTHT TEHTT T ATEFATS (AIT0T FaT TaTH
T ATTH G |

qes Tl

Frfq SETHRT AR T qa7 AT I ThgRT ST FEIRT STETRROT JAT SATABRIRT
FET fairr @ faRer grEfe SaaRdr FEIES I T ATURT B | GEI 94T
TAT ATAFFIT FTAHT faird AT (HaRor qvafed Fraeedr ST THHENT FFATHT G
FHT STEIFRYT (AR AR Il @ | A 3o Ua<d, I=d S@HI<h adr gfqatead
AT GLHT TEFeh! [daR0T T I i-care Software @IS T AN TH B | TAH AfqR<h
FHA AT grahd Aedes 9T I=d Jaed Aches q¥=dl database T AT
FET FUH TEAeE I WH G TqaE FHATAS I @HIh Jedhed qieard T
e JUHl T | HEATA UTeh e qraqT ATeeheb! [qaR0 Fareqd T, =g aa@g
HATAHT YTE el [FaR0T FATATIH TH AT AMGH ATAR e ANTHT T STl Fraesells
A=A [SU#T B | FFIA AT FEard G0l AR FFeel Aliddrs qeard &
famRoT U 9T fHawTaeitest qTe U7l A6 AhaTd AT (G9TEdeh] ATIRAT 84k T ATTITH
IRHATSH TWH B | FHAREEATS UEd el AIGUE I HEfald Frwadr ATaedd
diferdees feeae saar fed eamuer @ | wiasar 9 Uree afesme avewl gve iataiaar
HrANIT TN TRERIATHT (g AaerFad T HadTs HA=aedl (69 |

AT Yty R q9r sEena

Tq FHFA ATFI LI o1 JUTAT (MIS) Fad ¥ AT gATSd JATERd el G |
AT TRTETTHT FT SFaT HRER Foeerers (M=l fa qur Aqemad Sgaers
TR I ALTFT AT AT AMETHT FFIEY ATTAG -ZATTAT 75 Data Recovery site T
AT RN G, | AT Gfatae T gratead fafae gsaram sifewears e 18 o@ew g |
AT by AR 0T T G FAT GETH THHIATT Shree Mobile Banking THRTAT TSUeRT
% | 3Th APP Playstore AT 39l &bl %’;?{T a1 o= a8a ERdHr WW 31"_1?\"[3
TG | GAAT JUTEAT GEedl SAGHPT qT HFACATIAHT AT FHATNEEHT (AT SHAEATIHR

FradTe e fega g |

AT A= qorredt

TATAT I TAT TS I Sebel ST T FETTE@T qRATAAT & T FHFIATHT FATHET
AT g WA IATSUH] @ | A@IIRIET0 A TAT SMGH TG il i
FIHT JQ@TIRET TAT SGH AT GAdaGTe SRl AT T AETF AT HTTH T
FT T ATTHT B | TATE ATed AGTITEAT TAT URATHTT FiTaaeepl AITea T q=dTedeh
Fiafaer FFIATET AT =0T JUITelTeT GTaehIiaTehl SRt SATT9ad FTTITT T3 AT
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B | T ATeF FEAT FFeITH fatae afafaes seq arafa afae sgaeams atafa, qumad
Gfafd, Fvafa T@Iwor [HaRe Shges ATIKE [MIAAT JUTATH] TR AT BRATRT

TEHT T |

AT T aEIE T

FEIAT AT AT ARG &TAHT ITHT AR TAT AR JEI HTIH e ATTHT 3 |
AT TS ARIBTATAT JeTETHT GHER TAT SR TTRATAP qEIvd BTAH Tl 3 | AT,

fafae smaa a1 JRaare Ik IR dEeRT FHET 9T YTed aRTeeh] T T8 A% T1E
FATIH TH TN EH G |

T O

TSl I ST ATMepT THITTH HE=TAT (4T |fafd/s-afafq afFa soar srerd @
B | A1 At/ S9-afafdes IRt QEma=E! ITadT TR1E SAaH 2aEardd T4 H{cdag e
B | AT HaTHe e, TTEs av 97 THRATATE5h] H*—q"élvlls FFAT TS STeepTier SqHT
FEINTT FEHATE A AT F¥d TG AT F(chel AUBA AT A=Y FTHT FAALNA
WWWWWGWHQMM TIT HAITIREE HEINTA FTEAAH AATHEEET
SITH BRI dIT ST @,T'[l CH-‘{"IICN JLIT %i‘?ll%l"lvili é:l'a—fﬂﬁ;lq (’I%C'idIChl 61134""1 \‘rl‘lfbl SUHT
feruerr @ | 1, ATTTHT faeswT af HFIET RN GUET JAT TRETTATHT TeasTH 9% 93¢

g% SHHT Telesars favaed 9+ =mewg) |

TAAF AT T FoaTad CRE I THE qHAfaes

ToAAF WA

FEAIR Afg 3092 HfoR I3 T T (G99 AURT T GRATYE AR TRATE
oTRTST aTvg, fawer IS Srefl qAT TA-ATIRT SARIAEwH] ThaTS ITHEST qTH aReA, JH
T JATATE J97 Ha el 918 AP [Maiied g1 Audl g | oarashasredare TR qrvg
AfATTRT A& g 575 | WA FoATARHT HAAT ATTHRT § 575 | LTI qhare qrarraed
T q AT FoaATAE 9% el 3 )

ToATAd  ATATHR! TSF  ATTYARAT ATHR HEAATRl A1 (00T, FfGq Faearad qar
EATATIA D] HATHATT FATHA T AT ATTYTF (RS (& FREHAT Hrald bl G | TicTaa
YA FoATAF TATTERT 93 FaT T&F TARN T ATAFIREATE €. §43,000 T AT Y&

TRTRT T |

JgraEer it

FEHRT I ATEATRT FTHET, ATAh AT, AT AGTILILTT BTAATAAT T AGTILIETIT
TET [aEqd HTd GUMCIRl qIer TR0 qoardd ATATAT Aaeded Td/q¥h1a J97 TR
T el (AT AT AT Tebepl (MS9TehT At aT TET 41 Afafd T quw B |

T FrAfTHT FATSTHAT FoaATdAE 2T ITHESN TH] qW e AR G A T=oATeAb 2 IHY
WA YITHTE 9T 92 raadr 9199 THE FERT Aldged AT a7 ge1ex Flehl T T
B | Yiqaed FafaAT ST 5 FaT 95 TR T FSATARSIEEATE .430,000 T&F AT JaTH
RT3 |

Tq AT ATANE  A@TIIETIR HI AT QTR T, ATARE  A@TI&RATE T
T ATTHT FATGF GiTaad, ded d@meiedare i qiqasd g1 Tard A Thare qred

9 Hgrgdl A Hfddas 00¢/ow]
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fRr&or gfqaed T &1 IW FIAOAR] TaTh Gegdl g qd gahd TR G dars
ATFITH (AT TAT R (&bt AT T GEevaHT FoaTeeh ATATTHT T GRTa a7 famiied
9T T AT FATA AT AhaTe (ST AT THITTHRT T BIHE G0 T TH F |

Sfew ST |t

FHIAH] SIGH AL Geafed ATaede T/ ¥h1a a7 FaRiied g1 T Pl Hiea
Tl I Aehebl [TETTRT ATITHT TET AT AIATTRT T TRTSHT 3 |

TY AT FATTHAT T=aTeress 2 farer s Srell, Sr@radrerer Gtafaesr s - 9eq 98
AT AHEST GTHT N, JAIREAT [F9RT 7@ AT fasrar e q397 91 9 qt=aa+q1 7@
Sifew sfqed ot e Ford @A TR G | UfTaeT aUA ¥ g2 Aok ade a9 AfAfaH
TS AT AT GATAFIEEATE %.5% 000/~ YA TRTH 3 |

79 AT AAIGH FIHT G GATAAT qEE AAA, AT GHT R qor dedTerr,
TATT IRAEAT (Stress Testing), TR SIMGH, FATAT ST@H TAT FHoIl SAMGH ATGH] ATTHA T
H T oI FATTHT Giaeaed U9 T Tl | TAHT 1 FAGH FaEI =]
AR TTRTHT ITHIT TAT AATHEEHT SIHHN] (7 AT T FEIGHT FoATeAh ATAITHT I
q¥RTa TAT FaRIRE TeT 9 F1 79 AT T TH G |

FHa dar e afafa

FHATA FHANEEH qaT adT Tt AGeAF T/ qa7 [awTed Ter T9 Fre
fafasr Sarer TTsg Fepebt fAaeTIeRT At @ A1 Afafaer T TRUE F |

T9 ATAITH! FATSTHAT F=ATad HHAT FHAT ATIRRT, TG FTAHNT Afgeed AT faaramor
LI Fa?rmrﬁﬂmammﬁﬁ%ﬁwwﬁmm%ﬁaﬁww
A AT gEre, | TITaad auHT q 92T I3 TIHN T FATAFTIEEHATE &, 4%,000/ - TF

PORRCREY

AT J&T9 TRUHT 3 |

T ATATT FHATRIESH! CHHIE T HaT qadT A=A AT TAT G0 T2 qTTHIE
FIE ATAT T Tl FEI=IH] TATA% ATATTAT T G¥H1T AT AR T T TH G |
THfa YT farer avar atafa

AT ST Tebebl TR Tt o 7 AATTHT Touteler =1 AT YIS AT FATAF,
g ATHAT HAAT ATIRT TAT THE AMGH ATded =7 THI HITAT L qT AT
eIy AT I v gad aferd e TRl g | UfTaaT qAfaA T ¥ IIF 5% qhR T A5
AT AT0d ToATAF Yeadls 5. §¥,000 /- YIF TRTH |

T ATATTS falae ATIRHET THI STEIhT qIT ATAHATE HATHATTHT [aird Al TeIear
SREHET afe=Td qTaT HAT$T T4, ATEeh, AT gril, FRIEARHT GIegHT (A=Y ATTHTR]
EGMERICLIIES WQWHWWWWMWWW
ﬁﬁwmaﬁﬁmmawamwﬁmﬁ@ﬁm

FRIAR (TR T GHAT ST AT e demes
FFATA ANTHT qUHT A g [adR TIT 3¢ SANGH FaeaTaqdrs ATFI THE OIS
TS T THITTHET FAHASTATS T HBATHT QR T |
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o FFATAATS Fig Ta T FHHAT AR AT HTARETHT GOl T T IMET FqEIR I |

fréra qur sttt fafg=r Atamaw afers TaEs Toe-A T Arsd

o FHAM] HERA SRS A% di¢ F&7 ¥ THMEHR] dAT3H IUAch Fiatd qer
AT SHAET T

o HTRTAIH! TAT #qET TAT AME HATH Gfg T3 oA

o AT GTATgR! AAATH JARTETE FHFATH daT [aed™ T

o FHFEIAIH] ATARE [HIAT YU TIT FMAAATS A% AT q3& T |

o TN ATHINF JTRETIE A=A fafd=T STHEr FahAes Foaredd T |

8T @ I

e #ET auafE TUTCiTESed! fa=rdT 9TR ToRe IATe TUh! ATEITHT (e HRIesare
?Zﬁ—{%f frg fAera wa=r (Depository Participant, DP) H Far feq q2 TIﬁ'Q_Cbzf T | ERgAl
HETTATIESTE ey faxiia Feerare afsg Ja1 DMAT @raT @reil U g JUMTEl (One Window
System) AR AT fa= a8 d 3171?:[?‘1 TES |

W QIS SALRNAA
FI T ATTHT B | T GUAT HEAT RTEAT, RIATfcads TEIaT GReq0, e qa7 faxig
ATEARATHT &TAT &, §,04 §¥q T THl J |

AGINEE T T

FEAMR] ATMIF qT 095 /9% Bl A@IINET THHANT HFAT T 2053, THT 999
ek AT fairr FeAT TR UA 093 B THT €3 AET A@TILITF (HITh T FFaee
Pratik Khanal & Associates T8 &¥IHT UT R0%3, THRT 95 FHISTHB! THTUTHIT, EliEes
AT FAT AT [T ATeehl LW AT Jiqaad THTORIOT T TATSTABTAT
ek T A @ (Travelling and out of pocket expenses) s SFAT . § Y, UO (A&
TG A GO BWR 3% 99 TEIE W) WA Aled TRHHIE Y& T4 T I
‘Tﬁ'@h:[ fordT | ST B HOIY TYETT P&B Associates Wqﬁ T | HOX T Ui Jeblied= Pratik
Khanal & Associates 1 o@I(¢&TF CA. Pratik Khanal T P&B Associates T Managing Partner
TEHT T JEleh AJCTHT QIR TFI TTH G |

ToAAF AAITHT HRaad

gt v fafd R08s faw 8 Tq THF GoATAE TR T3F 7 305 o FLIIE
THEH! yfatfaca T q fae o e gearae A7 feer A Srefere gesader M
et Tt | |y fafq 09s wfvas ¥ T THHT ToF 7 30% o HATHAT FHAT wAferprTATS
WA FoATAHHT [<h T Grafdars quidr &g s arfie Ao a9rEre Jefewst
mﬁwwwm|wamﬁmwmﬁ%ﬁmww

AT FTHAT I F.IM0M AThIT FRI TG 095 JTH R T M@ AR] g T 0STATH
feaerr foral |

fafa 0% amuTE IR T GEATATT AET AURS GBF 7. g TG (AT TR AT
IRV EIMqFIATS AT ATAIOA qHAE 99 I (qorg 78 99 faraearg

9% TgTSHI aMN® Yfcrdad 009¢ /o]
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T

SATHHR TRICATA AT A6 o, faeirar geam gufeasror fasmrare fafq R0 #iids 9%
Mg 30 T AUHT TIEA (AR FHHAT G R FTHISTH HEA (q{q 209%, #faw
3 T FoATARESH (e J&dqrd Y {99 Freamer o1 Srarsual (a7 | I a9Tare
BT AT ATATTHRT TST ATH B | T A=aTd AeAeT 7 RRIT qI0E, oATARES
o7 faerer It el o+ THeEwr o arner, o IHT W 9uTErg, A7 "l yAE Atredn
e | [aTe FERHET SRAAT FEATTE GHEHT U AT SFHGARA AT A8 Rl
[T Ul |1 FHEHT Teh AT TR 98 Reh @bl & | WA g=aras HHAl 7HAAT
ATTFIRIHT FIIEA (IHRI T9ATT ¥ THTHH FeTd B G |

TATE g feraRor

T9 FFEAH AN gaedd A1 T AFedrs a1 AER aiedE g |
WA, R08s /R HT JATIEETE H 9 fdfgd TATEr Ui I9Uhl ¢ 9iq Her Hitgs
THTETES YT TUHHT bl I TS GHTETT RS 2T |

AN TGN HET AAee

TETEed T HTITH! GATET ¥ AT I= IT5 & qIT TFHT IIT ¥ ITRT TITARTATNT T&Te
T TTHT AHA I, TedATE T 1T IiT BTeeh AR Johe GG | T8 FFIAIS JATITETATS T T
fafae Fameeds oavF T, TIGAT ¥ SIS TS GoaTas AT Yidag Ehl [geard faarss
IR TAT THeT YT THU JATIeTATs qa-TFAT TR e TwIHT [9aeT o |

g991< |
w .................... ‘ .... Wm mw .......
BECISEY BECISED BECISE
mw ....................... W .............. qw@-
SECISE SEEISED qJegqa
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Uil Vol 2063 I GWT 90t dMISTHDI
ufddgel

FEAT UA, 0%3 HI THRT 0%, (§) ATARB! ANIF [FaT0Fl EHAT ATMTF TH 085 /9 H ATTH
AGIINET qE AUTA AT AFATE TAThd TUHT ATTAT, ATRI-AHIH [G@Td AT 7G JATERT ATARHT
TAR RS FAT F=arers ATATTRT Jiqaad ThT 102(¥) ATIRH AT T4 [qaRuesars AdrR AT

T gidqasd TaR TRTH 3 |

Q. et fraor
T AT qUHT FFAR AT T FRIEAREH [Gd aRg=Fes 81d ATaR W8l G |

%, qE«Ad
ATTF T 2095 /9, I AT HFIATHR B A ISl & QY 5%, 94,000\~ TH G | T THH
AT HT FFIATH FHA [HET T, & 03 s FIS T Foll AU 5. Y Fd 43 FS Whl B | AfdF
FURT FAHT TR Afehs TERIT &. 90 AT (Bl Holl TIZHI 0.0 FIAA) ATT &bl T ST
TIT AT B (TEATA AT ATEHT) F.39 FE YR AT T G |

g. 6T A
AMIF a6 00s /O HT FFIATH HA AR Afead] qUH] AT 40,50 Fiqerdsl afger
¥ SR FE o A T KA @I 20.9% AR g ¥ 90 FIS 1§ G IR T | T
AT F FTAT TFIOT FRIAR IfSGHT FFIAIH] & FATRT (AT TAT F2 T 9fe) & & FIS
R AT TEH G |

. TR 9418

TG ATTIF AT FEATA IR (TehT HUTTAGTHT 5.3 RS T AT TLebl ATATIT HrI bl
FHEU] Tfafafaare 78 Y4 & % FAS R A@ gAlcHsd HUH B | Afdcdl dAdiger 798 gaTe
T U FS ¥ ATE HICHE Sl (93T |

(AT F 2065 /9%, T faxiTd FRIAREPT QI TUET a0 TAT ATGTTEs TG GieTaa=TaT
FHTAT TEHT & )

R ToAd gtufger afqaeT:

%.

FHAP! T A AP FREAR ST [T AEAR @H S

(. TEHT)
A ST ’,459 5,209 c3,%0
] &%,599 %,%,9Y Y,3%,00
FHAT AT 44,3%5 ¥45\95 ¥ %935
FHA ATFRTAT 5,259 0¥ 59 99 ¥q
FT G o9 45 ¥ 0 9,54
T FRIAR ISH GF HATRT 0% 99,%Y 99,9%
ATTeT faraRer (gt WR* QR L]
T dfry FeadT 90 [ q0

1%

argreal aiffed ufaded Q00¢ /o]
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T I 095 /9% AT FFIWIH! (HET Mad Foll AIE TIAT Jig TTH g | 99 99 Gg
HATRT 0.4 FiqeTde Tdehl g | I dfebg THId Tq a9 AqAR 7 M6 HA bl ATIH
0.0R AT EH B, |

g, T qur ARiie qRAEREE FEE FRARAE B FE Wl T A FqQ

faea AT Sfauer fe® T=rehl S8R Graee YSIaad JeT9HT 95 W@ A qtg, SATH]
TEATHT AUTEl TR FHAR ga T AMAS ATATART TAATHT [ATT TR Gheara SIreel 91
awa@wamﬁﬁwwﬁumwalﬁﬁﬁwwmwﬁw
farTaT a1 T T@Pl qAT GAT [GHHTRT FRO ATIE TARAT T JATGHTA S|
TN THT AT TR ATET TG AgaaT Afehy FRIARAT FTGH affs TUHT sfgvg | 79
T4 FTAT AATT (e MU T ATSIEY d@e MU R HI{Feh STAT (HETh! AN Tas
TUHT FolT T ol THREBN ATAER THGH AATTHT AT Fig T TUTA TG Sebebl (MM gaT
fHETTeRT 2aTsT @I UTh EaT TEh! B | TAA TET ollebl WRTHAT HUT ATS b qr faira
TR FRARATS THA qTR TATTH (@73, | THINAR AHIH] ST Fed  AHebal
HRAH qRAAT AT TAT TF T BRIAT FETHIHR T FEH q=A1e (a9 fadirg HRER
THA JATad AU 3@ | TTHT ¥R ISR ATRAT FIAH AGaHFH G Yid ATmaTar
rylicacaizall

qT Fefad o aftga qur avaeifted s99T Soia TR FFIAIE! FRIARATE B TaT
T AUATT ATTET THIAT AT F faebTd T IIciehT AT ATATRT AT A%h GebRIcHE qar
SUIH ATATARY FoAAT ge, ST ST I Alhes, |

M. giqae qaR TP FAfae T e auer STl T AT T 99 FRe Tl 9oadd
gfwfaer  aron
T AT qUPT TT QY TAGEH HEIATRT FET & AT U3 FAS TIT HAl A9 L AT ¥3
FRES HE R09R, AT HATAH TAATHT [&TT 0 &%, IALTAT Tdehl T Foll AIE .55 Ffaerae
TR G |
Flieh! fHataa fFeT Seirare THTEERI aAar8s ScaTaq e & v faae a3 =T
fadTy ear fag foaed e FTarg FAM FH e F, TA JAT AT AN, ATIR 47,
IIRTE ASHMRT, ATATT STEAT SFHT AR AT TGS ANTTHT @ | bFavirel gl &ell
RS Aw_T 9f F-AET FaANTF T ICACGAHAF &TAqh beald el Foll Jarg T Al
AAATURT B | AHGTTETHT FFIAT T T [l Jarars Ak TEFHEl T Tse o 2
W T ORI AT G2 T d% beald e (@ SRIER =T T HFred q11d 3
fe smuer 3 |
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ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHREE INVESTMENT AND FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shree Investment and Finance Company Limited (referred to
as the “Company"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022),
and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows,
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022), its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ICAN’s
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

a) Information Technology (‘IT’) systems and controls impacting financial repor.tin.é in
relation to the Company

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

' The IT environment of the Company is | In assessing the integrity of the IT systems relevant
| complex and involves a large number of | for financial reporting, our team obtained an
independent and interdependent IT systems understanding of the IT infrastructure and IT
used in the operations of the Company for ' systems relevant to the Company’s financial
processing and recording a large volume of reporting process for evaluation and testing of
transactions at numerous locations. relevant IT general controls and IT application

The accuracy and reliability of the financial controls.

reporting process depends on the IT systems = We gathered a comprehensive understanding of IT
and the related control environment, including:  applications landscape implemented at th
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= |T general controls over user access
management and change management
across applications, networks, database,
and operating systems;

= |T application controls.

Due to the pervasive nature, complexity and

importance of the impact of the IT systems

and related control environment on the

Company's financial reporting process, we
| have identified testing of such IT systems and
| related control environment as a Key Audit
| Matter for the current year audit.

|Company. It was followed by process
understanding, mapping of applications to the same

' and understanding financial risks posed by people-
process and technology.

We also assessed the operating effectiveness of
controls over granting, removal and periodical
review of access rights. We further tested
segregation of duties, including preventive controls
to ensure that access to change applications, the
operating system or databases in the production
environment were granted only to authorized
personnel.

' Other areas that were assessed under the IT control |
environment was whether requests for access to |
systems were appropriately logged, reviewed and |
authorized. Entity level controls pertaining to policy
and procedure were also part of our audit procedure.

Where deficiencies were
compensating controls or
. procedures.

identified, we tested
performed alternate

b) Identification and provisioning for non-performing assets (‘NPAs’) in relation to the

Company

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 32 Ashad 2079: NPR 5,480.2 million;
Provision for NPA as at 32 Ashad 2079: NPR 21.55 million

(Refer Schedule 4.6, 4.7 and Note 3.4.5 of Schedule 3 and Notes 5.2.2 (c) of Schedule 5 to

_ the financial statements)
" Key Audit Matter

| The Nepal Rastra Company (“NRB")
guidelines on recognition of Interest Income

i and Unified Circular prescribes the prudential

- norms for Income Recognition, Identification

(and Classification of Non-Performing
Advances and Provisioning for Loans and
Advances.

The Company is also required to apply its

judgement to determine the identification and

provision required against NPAs by applying
. quantitative as well as qualitative factors.

' The risk of identification of NPAs is affected
by factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
: certain sectors.

. The provisioning for identified NPAs is

;__e§l_i_t_a_'§ateq__ bgsgd on a_ge_ing qnd ‘glassif_icatipn‘ ‘

How our audit addressed the keﬁ audit mattef ' |

| Our key procedures included, but were not limited
to, the following:

= We understood the process & controls, tested the
design and operating effectiveness of key
controls, including IT based controls, focusing on
the following:

a) Approval of new lending facilities against the
Company's credit policies and the performance
of annual loan assessments.

b) Controls over the monitoring of credit quality
which amongst other things included, the
monitoring of overdue reports, drawing power
limit, pending security creation.

c) ldentification and classification of NPAs in line |
with NRB's circular, the impairment requirement |
as per carve out on NFRS 9 provided e
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' of NPAs, recovery estimates, value of security
| and other qualitative factors and is subject to
{ the minimum provisioning norms specified by

Bank and certain qualitative aspects; and

i d) Assessment of adequacy of NPA provisions

| NRB and impairment of risk assets as per |

carve out provided by ICAN..
The identification of NPAs and provisioning

for advances require significant level of
estimation and given its significance to the |

| overall audit including possible observation by |
| NRB which could result into disclosure in the |

| financial statements.

Considering the significance of the above

heightened regulatory

current year audit.

matter to the financial statements, the |
inspections and |
significant auditor attention required, we have |
identified this as a Key Audit Matter for the |

being the higher of NRB norms and carve out on
NFRS 9 provided by ICAN.

To test the identification of loans with default
events and other triggers, we selected a sample
of performing loans and independently assessed
as to whether there was a need to classify such
loans as NPAs.

Performed inquiries with the credit and risk
departments to ascertain if there were indicators
of stress or an occurrence of an event of default
in a particular loan account or any product
category which needed to be considered as NPA.

Held specific discussions with the management
of the Company on sectors where there is
perceived credit risk and the steps taken to
mitigate the risks to identified sectors.

As per our review of the impairment calculation,

we noted that the impairment is calculated higher R

of the following prescribed method:
A NRB Regulation;

i, NFRS Pronouncement with specific
reference to Carve out on NFRS-9
provided by ICAN.

c) Provisions for litigation and taxation and contingent liabilities in relation to the Company
(Schedule 4.28 read with Note 5.6 of Schedule 5 to the financial statements)

| Key Audlil‘ITIa-tte*r ' How our audit addressed the key audmi't" matter

| The Company has ongoing legal and tax
cases which is pending in different courts of

Our key procedures included, but were not limited
to, the following:

Nepal. Significant management judgement is
needed in determining whether an obligation

recognized as at the reporting date, in

. under Nepal Accounting Standard 37 -
| Provisions, Contingent Liabiltes and

needs to be disclosed as a contingent liability.

exists and whether a provision should be

accordance with the accounting criteria set |

Contingent Assets (‘NAS 37'), or whether it |

Further, significant judgements are also
| involved in measuring such obligations, the

| most significant of which are:

Obtained an understanding of the Company's
process for determining tax liabilities, tax
provisions and contingent liabilities pertaining to
taxation matters;

Obtained list of cases / matters in respect of

which litigations were outstanding as at reporting |

date.

Evaluated the merit of the subject matter under
consideration with reference to the grounds

presented therein and available independent

legal / tax advice;
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‘= Assessment of liability: Judgement is =

involved in the determination of whether an
outflow in respect of identified material
matters are probable and can be estimated
reliably

= Adequacy of
appropriateness of assumptions and
judgements used in the estimation of

provisions: The .

Review and analysis of evaluation of the
contentions of the Company through discussions, |
collection of details of the subject matter under |
consideration, the likely outcome and |
consequent potential outflows on those issues;

Further, we assessed whether the disclosures
related to significant litigation and taxation
matters were appropriate and adequate in terms

significant provisions; and of whether the potential liabilities and the

= Adequacy of disclosures of provision for significant uncertainties were fairly presented.
liabilities and charges, and contingent
liabilities.

| We determined the above area as a Key Audit

' Matter in view of associated uncertainty

' relating to the outcome of these matters which

requires application of judgment in

| interpretation of law.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Report of the Board of Directors (BOD), including annexures to the BOD'’s
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the /agq;ggatqd »
D &
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. /’
Q).
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Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, statement of financial position as at 16 July
2022 (32 Ashad 2079), statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows, have been prepared in the format prescribed by the
Nepal Rastra Bank Unified Directives No. 4 and in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2063 and Section 59 of the Banks and Financial Institution Act, 2073 and are in agreement with the
books of account maintained by the Company; and proper books of account as required by law maintained
by the Company including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid financial statements
have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and records of the Company. In
our opinion, the returns received from the branches were sufficient for the purpose of the audit though
these statements were independently not audited.

In our opinien, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the company we have not come across cases where Board of
Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the
accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Bank and violated any
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the

Company, its de d investors.
iy

4

L

Managing Partner

P. & B. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Thapaguan, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu
Date: 15 December 2022

UDIN No: 221216CA010940s60Z
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Shree Investment & Finance Co. Ltd.
Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information: FY 2078-79

1. Reporting Entity
Shree Investment & Finance Co Ltd. (SIFCO) or the “Company” was incorporated in the year 1994 (2051 BS),
as a Financial Services Company and a Merchant Bank under the Nepal Finance Company Act, 1985 and the
Nepal Company Act, 1964. The Company has been licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank as “C” class Financial
Institution to undertake financial services and merchant banking activities in the country.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) read along with the approved carve-outs and in the format as
per Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2078. Historical cost convention is used for financial statement
recognition and measurement except otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than
historical costs, such as fair value has been applied, these have been disclosed in accordance with the
applicable reporting framework.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Accounts. These financial statements comply with the regulations of NRB,
requirement of Companies Act and provide appropriate disclosures required under regulations of the
Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON).

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements
The Company follows the Nepalese financial year b ased on the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding
dates for the English calendar are as follows:

Comparative SFP* Date 31 Ashadh 2078 15 July 2021
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2077 - 31 Ashadh 2078 16 July 2020 - 15 July 2021
First NFRS SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2074 15 July 2017
Current NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2078 - 32 Ashadh 2079 16 July 2021 - 16 July 2022
Current SFP Date 32 Ashad 2079 16 July 2022

*SFP = statement of financial position

The approval of financial statements of the Company along with the accompanied notes to the financial
statements were adopted by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 15 Dec 2022 and the Board
acknowledges its responsibility of preparation of the financial statements. The approved financial
statements have been recommended for approval of the shareholders in the 28th annual general meeting
of the Company.

2.3 Responsibility for financial statements
The board of directors of the company is responsible for preparation of financial statement of the company
which reflect true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the company. The board is
view that the financial statements in its entirely have been prepared in conformity with the prevailing
financial reporting standard, regulations of the NRB and requirements of the Companies Act 2063.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss,
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.
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2.4 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded off to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

2.5 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed
could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice
could have been more appropriate. It is also required to make estimates and assumptions that will affect
the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements.

The most significant area of assumption and estimation applied in application of accounting policies that
have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial statements are listed herein:

>  Fair value of financial instruments;

Classification of financial assets & liabilities;

Impairment losses on financial assets and on financial assets;
Useful economic life of property, plant and equipment;

Taxation and deferred tax ;

YV V V V V

Defined benefit obligation;
»  Provisions for liabilities, commitments and contingencies.

Information about significant areas of estimation and critical judgments in applying accounting policies,
other than those stated above, and which have significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are described in respective notes.

The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

The accounting policies as explained in Note 3 herein are consistently applied to except otherwise stated.
They are further included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements, and the effect
and nature of the changes, if any, are disclosed. The accounting estimates are appropriately disclosed in
the relevant sections of the Notes to Accounts wherever the estimates have been applied along with the
nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

The accounting policies are to be applied consistently. Changes in accounting policies, if any, are to be
disclosed with the financial impact to the extent possible. When polices are not guided by the reporting
framework, NFRS, other reporting standards and generally accepted accounting principles are to be
followed.

2.6 Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Company has adequate resources
to continue its business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, a wide range of information
was considered, which are relevant to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast doubt upon company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

2.7 Materiality and aggregation
In the financial statements materiality and aggregation is dealt with in compliance with Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 1“Presentation of Financial Statements”and within the scope of formats implemented by
Nepal Rastra Bank. Accordingly, each material class of similar items presented separately and items that
are not similar in nature or function are also presented separately unless these are immaterial.
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2.8 Offsetting
In the Statement of Financial Position, financial assets and financial liabilities are netted off only when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not netted off
in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an accounting standard or interpretation
and as specifically disclosed in the company’s accounting policy.

2.9 Changesin Accounting Policies
The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with NFRS. The
accounting policies are applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed with the financial impact to the
extent possible.

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies that most appropriately suits its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in respect
of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have
been more appropriate. The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of
the financial statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

During the current year, there is no change in accounting policies.

2.10 Reporting Pronouncements
The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB
as effective on September 13, 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated October 30, 2020 has
resolved that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the
Banks and Financial Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of Accounting Standard
Board (ASB). Details of carve out provided are as follows:

2.10.1 NFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements
In para 19 of NFRS 10, a parent shall prepare consolidated financial statements using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances unless it is
impracticable to do so.

However, this particular reporting standard is not applicable to the company.

2.10.2 NAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting
In para 2, if an entity’s interim financial report is described as complying with NFRSs, it must
comply with all of the requirements of this Standard. Paragraph 19 requires certain disclosures
in that regard. However, an entity shall not require to restate its corresponding previous interim
period balance if it is impracticable to restate. However, this particular carve out is not applicable
to the company for FY 2021-22.

2.10.3 NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
a) Impairment

In para 58, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired.
If any such evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any
impairment loss unless the entity is a bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and
Financial Institutions Act, 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances
as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63; and shall apply paragraph 63 to measure
the impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances. The entity shall disclose
the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment loss determined as per
paragraph 63.
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The carve out is not optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18 to 2023-24. Company
will measure the impairment of loan and advances to customers as higher of the impairment
as assessed under NFRS or as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank. The provision is
mandatory where impairment under NFRS and impairment under NRB norms has been disclosed
for comparison and the higher of the two is charged as impairment and recognized in the financial
statements.

b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of
effective interest rate

In para 9, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received,
unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a
group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when
it is not possible to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument
(or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21,
2021-22 and 2022-23. Accordingly, the Bank has opted the carve out.

¢) Impracticability to determine interest income on amortized cost

In para AG 93, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down
as aresult of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest
income shall be calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21,
2021-22 and 2022-23. Accordingly, the Bank has opted the carve out.

2.11 New Standards in issue and effective
Following are the new standards issued by Accounting Standards Board of Nepal effective from
Financial Year 2078-79:

a) NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
b) NFRS 15 - Revenue from contract with customers
c) NFRS 16 - Leases

2.12 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting
is material.

2.13 Limitation of NFRS implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same would exceed
the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective
sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following items which were
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measured or recognized as stated:

1) Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at its initial recognition. Subsequent
recognition of FVTOCI and FVTPL financial instruments are measured at fair value.

2) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation after deducting the net of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation
a. Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date
i.e. when control is transferred to the Company. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group
takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Company measures goodwill at the acquisition date as;
the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire, plus

if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the preexisting equity
interest in the acquire, less

the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that
the Company incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured, and settlement
is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss except for measurement period
adjustment.

There is no business combination during the fiscal year 2078-79.
b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)

For each business combination, the Company elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree either at fair value; or at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,
which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Company’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests
are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The Company does not have any NCl as on reporting date.
c. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity if it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee. The Financial Statements of subsidiaries
are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.
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The Company reassesses whether it has control if there are changes to one or more of the elements
of control. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are combined
line by line by adding the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiary. The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated in full. All intra group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (such
as interest income and technical fee) are eliminated in full while preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

d. Loss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Company derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
carrying amount of non-controlling interests and the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity related to the subsidiary. Further parent’s share of components previously recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCl) is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings as appropriate. Any
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in the profit or loss. If the Group retains
any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that
control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of influence retained.

e. Transaction Elimination on Consolidation

Allintra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment

3.3 Cash and Cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand and highly liquid financial assets with original
maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in their fair value and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash
and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1 Recognition
The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the terms of
the contract, which is the trade date or the settlement date.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company applies NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
recognition, and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, the impairment of
financial assets, and hedge accounting. The Financial Instrument has been classified in line with
the provision of NFRS 9 as mentioned in the point no. 3.5.2.

Financial asset is any asset that is:
Cash;
b. an equity instrument of another entity;
c. acontractual right:
- toreceive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- toexchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favorable to the entity; or

d. acontract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of
the entity’s own equity instruments; or
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- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

A financial liability is any liability that is:
a. contractual obligation:
- todeliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

b. acontract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of
the entity’s own equity instruments; or

- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

3.4.2 Classification
Financial assets are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At Fair Value — through Profit or Loss

Held at fair value through Other Comprehensive

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Income

3 Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

Financial Liabilities are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At fair value through Profit or Loss
2 Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments (financial assets and
liabilities) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

3.4.3 De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset, or a portion of a financial asset, from its financial
statements where the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have expired, or have been
transferred, usually by sale, and with them either substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset or significant risks and rewards, along with the unconditional ability to sell or pledge the
asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been settled, has expired or has been
extinguished.

3.4.4 Determination of Fair Value
The Company applies NAS 39. All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date of initial recognition and, depending on the classification of the asset or liability, may
continue to be held at fair value either through profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

3rgTgdl i Hfrded 00¢/0l] %3




(e T AT T R o e )

ﬁ‘\@ 31t ScICHGE UUS BIScllcd b. [,

Ve
@g{’ Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

Wherever possible, fair value is determined by reference to a quoted market price for that
instrument. For many of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, quoted prices are not
available, and valuation models are used to estimate fair value. The models calculate the expected
cash flows under the terms of each specific contract, and then discount these values back to a
present value based on interest rate yields and volatility of currency rates.

The financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is
observable information available in an active market to the contrary. The best evidence of an
instrument’s fair value on initial recognition is typically the transaction price.

Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs and these may vary from product to
productand change over time. Factors include the depth of activity in the relevant market, the type
of product, whether the product is new and not widely traded in the marketplace, the maturity
of market modelling and the nature of the transaction (bespoke or generic). To the extent that
valuation is based on models or inputs that are not observable in the market, the determination of
fair value can be more subjective, dependent on the significance of the unobservable input to the
overall valuation. Unobservable inputs are determined based on the best information available,
for example by reference to similar assets, similar maturities or other analytical techniques.

The sensitivity of valuations used in the financial statements to possible changes in significant
unobservable inputs is not applicable to the Company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgement and
complexity, in particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs (‘Level 3’
assets and liabilities). This note provides information on these instruments, including the related
unrealized gains and losses recognised in the period, a description of significant valuation
techniques and unobservable inputs, and a sensitivity analysis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires an entity to classify its assets and liabilities according to
a hierarchy that reflects the observability of significant market inputs. The three levels of the fair
value hierarchy are defined below.

Level 1- Valuation Technique using quoted market prices

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active market. Such
instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets where the quoted price is readily available, and the price represents actual and
regularly occurring market transactions. An active market is one in which transactions occur with
sufficient volume and frequency to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2- Valuation technique using observable inputs

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are
observable in an active market. Valuations based on observable inputs uses market standard
pricing techniques, and are commonly traded in markets where all the significant inputs are
observable.

Level 3- Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant inputs that
are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). A valuation input is considered
observable if it can be directly observed from transactions in an active market, or if there is
compelling external evidence demonstrating an executable exit price. Unobservable input levels
are generally determined via reference to observable inputs, historical observations or using
other analytical techniques. These are financial instruments valued using valuation techniques
where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.
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3.4.5 Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may
have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after
the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:
- Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

- When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its
obligation.

- Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of
the counterpart.

- Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished
financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of
scheduled payments.

- Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot
yet be identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and amortized cost
investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. Allindividually significant loans
and advances and amortized cost investment securities are assessed for specific impairment.
Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment
that has been incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and amortized cost investment securities that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances
and amortized cost investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is
done on annual basis for trade receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and
external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses statistical modelling of historical trends
of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted
for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default
rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against
actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

a) Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost
As per NAS 39

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances
to customers as well as held-to—maturity investments are impaired, and impairment losses are
recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (Top 20 borrowers and borrowers
classified as Non-Performing as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive) are assessed for individual
impairment test. The recoverable value of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of
collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past experience of the Company. Assets that are
individually assessed and for which no impairment exists are grouped with financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. The credit risk
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3.5

3.6

3.7

statistics for each group of the loan and advances are determined by management prudently
being based on the past experience. For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment
Company has categorized assets in to five broad products as follows:

1. Term Loan
Auto Loan

Home Loan

HowonN

Personal Loan
5. ShortTerm Loan

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment
reserve) in statement of other comprehensive income and statement of changes in equity. If a
future write—off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the ‘Statement of Profit or Loss.

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management'’s
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum
provisioning level prescribed in relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on
loans and advances including bills purchased at 1.3% to 100% on the basis of classification of
loans and advances, overdraft and bills purchased in accordance with NRB directives.

Policies Adopted

As per the NFRS Carve out, the Company measures impairment loss on loan & advances as the
higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision
and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Company acquires or incurs principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed
together for short-term profit or position taking. They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or
loss. All changes in fair value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as regarded as fair
value through statement of profit & loss.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not
classified as trading assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management purposes are measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position. Hedge accounting is not adopted for certain derivatives held
for risk management such as Forward Exchange Contracts.

Property and Equipment
a. Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at
cost, if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and if the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

- the cost of materials and direct labor;

- any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use;

- when the company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the
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costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located;
and

- Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither, class of the
property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at
the reporting date. The items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as
part of that equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in
working condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and
equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying
amount of the item) is recognized within other income in statement of profit or loss.

b. Capital Work in Progress

Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for use are shown as capital work in
progress.

c. Depreciation

Straight line method of depreciation on fixed assets is applied to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as per management judgment, as follows:

Computer 5 Years

Furniture and Fixture 10 Years

Office Equipment 10Years

Other Fixed Assets 10 Years

Vehicle 10 Years

Building 50 Years

Leasehold 15 years or lease period whichever is lower

Software Over the contract period (6 years if contract period not available)

Assets costing less than Rs2,000 are fully charged to statement of profit loss in the year of purchase.
d. De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property and equipment is included in statement of profit or loss when
the item is derecognized (unless on a sale and lease back). The gain shall be classified as revenue.

3.8 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability
that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Company, and are amortized on
the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized
where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software
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costs are amortized on the basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are
recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down
immediately. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.

3.9 Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and equipment
under NAS 16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-current assets held for sale
under NFRS 5 - “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations”. The company has recognized
asinvestment property such land or land and building acquired by the Bank as non-banking assets in course
of recovery of loans and advances to borrowers that have turned into chronic defaulters.

Non-banking assets (only land and building) are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition
the company has chosen to apply the cost model allowed by NAS 40 - “Investment Property” and since it is
not intended for owner-occupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are
FVTOCI in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.

3.10 Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

a. CurrentTax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the
declaration of dividends.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting date which is
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

3.11 Deposits, Debts Securities issued and subordinated liabilities
a. Deposits

The Company accepts deposits from its customers under savings account, current account and term
deposits which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions
are recorded on the company’s books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the
Company and represents the amount owed by the Company to the customer.
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b. Debt Securities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value
minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where the Company designates liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company has not issued any of such debt securities.

c. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the
claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Company does not have any of
such subordinated liabilities.

3.12 Provisions
The Company recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Company has a present constructive
or legal obligation that can be reliability measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit
will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If itis no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the
ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases
relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The Company’s
revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, remittance income, service fee, etc. and the
bases of incomes recognition are as follows:

a. InterestIncome

Interest income on FVTOCI assets and financial assets held at amortised cost shall be recognized
using the Company’s normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate using
effective interest rate method.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortised over the life of
the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would
have been derived under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material.
The Company considers that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds
the benefit that would be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
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calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss is recognized within net interest income.

The Company recognises the interest income on loans and advances as per Guideline on Recognition
of Interest Income, 2019.The Company has derecognised the interest income amounting to NPR
6,459,518.42 in case of loan where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12
months in arrears, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral. Further, the Company has no
interest income recognized in case of loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest
are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net realizable value” of security is insufficient to
cover payment of principal and accrued interest.

The company has not recovered any interest income (on cash basis) of previous year receivable during
the period of Shrawan 1-15, 2079. Therefore, the company do not require to transfer any amount in
Retained Earnings from Regulatory Reserve.

Interest capitalization as per NRB Directive No.2 (Para 39)

During the current fiscal year company has no loans and advances which has been utilized in the
National Priority sector and hence not capitalized and recognized any Interest Income.

b. Fees & Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or
significant act performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining such value. Whenever,
the cost of recognizing fees and commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in determining
such value, the fees and commissions are charged off during the year.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is
the ex-dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income
from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the
underlying classification of the equity investment.

d. NetTrading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes
all realised and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

e. NetIncome from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading
derivatives held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships
and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. It includes all realized
and unrealized fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

f. Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain or loss on the disposal of property and equipment is determined on the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount on disposal date and the disposal proceeds, net of any disposal costs. This is
recognized as an item of Other Operating Income in the year in which significant risks and rewards
incidental to the asset’s ownership is transferred to the buyer.

3.14 Interest expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective
interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the
Company'’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading
assets and liabilities in net trading income.
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3.15 Employees Benefits
a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.
The Company provides bonus at 10% of Net Profit before tax.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period):

- wages, salaries and social security contributions,
- paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
- profit-sharing and bonuses and
- non-monetary benefits
b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;
i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
personnel expenses in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present
value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly
at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Company does not assume any future
liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company'’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are
deducted.

The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from defined
benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined
benefit plans in employee benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement
comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service
cost that had not previously been recognised.

Description of Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity - Funded

The gratuity provision has been provided with compliance of New Labor Act, 2074. These
benefits are treated as defined contribution plan and provided accordingly.

As these gratuities are defined benefit plans, the liability recognized in the statement of financial
position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets.
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Such obligations are estimated on the basis of actuarial Valuation. For those employee which has
not completed the 5 years of service has not been considered for gratuity valuation and has been
provided 8.33% considering as defined benefit plan.

The company has recognized gratuity obligations towards gratuity entitlement of individual
employees and meets the funding requirement to the related Defined Benefit Plan assets is
managed by Citizen Investment Trust (CIT).

An actuarial valuation is carried out every year using the Projected Unit Credit Method to ascertain
the full liability under gratuity. The Projected Unit Credit Method involves estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods and discounting the benefit amount to determine its present value.

Description of Defined Benefit Plan - Accumulated Leave - Non-funded

The company'’s net obligation towards accumulated staff leave is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. Net change in liability for accrued leave, including any actuarial gain and loss,
are recognized in profit or loss as staff expense.

iii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate
employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies
are recognised as an expense if the Company has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is
probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.
If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then they are discounted to
their present value.

iv. Loan to employees at below-market interest rate

The company has a policy of providing loans to its employees at below-market interest rate. This
asset is bifurcated and recognized as two different elements viz. a prepaid employee benefit and
a loan asset. Initially fair value of employee loan is determined by discounting the future loan
repayments using a market rate of interest. This fair value is recognized as loan asset and any excess
of the principal loan amount over the fair value is recognized as deferred employee expenditure.

Deferred employee expenditure is amortized over the loan tenure with the amortization amount
recognized as interestincome and a corresponding finance expense within the personnel expense

Interest Rate: 8.17

Market Interest Rate: 9.48

Total Staff Loan: 43,212,578
Amortized Staff Loan: 39,365,853
Unamortized Staff Loan: 3,846,725

3.16 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
considers whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This may be specified explicitly or implicitly and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct
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asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the
decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either;

The Company has the right to operate the asset; or

The Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used.

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right to use of assets is the present value of the total lease payments up to the contract date from the
start of contract inclusive of any increments on the payment of the rent. The present value has been
derived using the discount rate equal to the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The Company has
applied cost model after initial recognition on commencement date and subsequent measurement. The
Company has measured the right-of-use asset at cost:

a. Lessaccumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment and
b.  Adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s’ incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

The Company presents right of use assets under Note 4.13 to the financial statements while the
corresponding lease liability is presented in Note 4.23, ‘Other Liabilities' The detail explanation for the
charge of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities has been explained in Notes. 4.38.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases
(that have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. The Company recognizes
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost,
or year-end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in either the statement of profit or loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment
of the gain or loss on the asset or liability.

3.17 Financial guarantee and loan commitment
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of agreement.
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Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Loan commitment is the commitment where the Company has confirmed its intention to provide funds
to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether
cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Company has not made payments at the reporting date,
those instruments are included in the financial statement as commitments.

3.18 Share Capital and Reserves
The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in
total assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the
Company and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are declared.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, corporate
social responsibility reserve, investment adjustment reserve, regulatory reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained
earning computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

3.19 Earnings per share including diluted
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.20 Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the company’s management
committee, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. Company has no practice of accounting intra segment revenue or expenses. Geographical
segments are considered for the purpose of segment reporting. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining business segment performance. The Company is organized
for management and Head Office and branches. The segment results that are reported include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly common assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.

3.21 Carve out taken by Bank from Carve out issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
i.  Calculation of Effective Interest rate

Transaction cost and fees incurred and received in obtaining deposits and lending to customers are
not included in calculating the effective interest rate. Those costs and fees are not of material item
and the effect of these will not materially differ in the original effective interest rate and re-calculated
effective interest rate. This carve out applies till FY 2022-23.

ii. Incurred loss model to measure the Impairment Loss on Loans and advances.

Bank has applied carve out which mandate for providing loss allowance for loans and advances as per
the directive issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. This carve out applies till FY 2022-23.
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Shree Investment & Finance Co. Ltd.
Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information: FY 2078-79

5. Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1 Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Company has set clear separation between business function and risk
management function. Accordingly, the Company has set up a separate Risk Management Committee
(RMC) headed by Director as Coordinator of RMC. The RMC evaluate overall risk faced and determined
the level of risks which will be in the best interest of the Company. RMC oversees global, macro, micro
and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis and
are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management Committee and the Board to discuss
the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate. The RMC also develops the mechanism for
assessing and reviewing its risk management policies, processes and procedures for individual risk
elements, at a regular interval, based on the main findings of the monitoring reports and the results of
analysis of developments from external market changes and other environmental factors.

Board

Risk Management Committee CEO

| |
Compliance Officer Deputy CEO

Operation Incharge

Figure: Risk Management — Structure
i. Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Company and is responsible to
frame and implement robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and
direction issued by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure
is in accordance with the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within
the Company. The board understands the nature of risk of the company, and periodically
reviews reports on risk management, including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity
and capital adequacy through the reporting by the Risk Management.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Company has established Risk
Management Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. At
least four quarterly meeting is conducted on annual basis however number of meeting can be
increased as per the requirement. The committee supervises overall risk management of the
Company broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk, credit risk and residual
risk.

ii. Risk Governance

Company has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at
enterprises level arising to the company and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by
establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities
and inhabiting good ethical culture.
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Through its Risk Management Framework, the Company seeks to efficiently manage credit,
market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Company’s commercial activities as
well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any
business undertaking.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with,
policies relating to management risk, supply risk, production risk, demand risk and collection risk.

The Company'’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within
the Company’s risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client
business, senior management and committees. Information regarding material risk issues and
compliance with policies and standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior
management and committees.

iii. Risk Management Policy Guidelines

The Company does not have separate Risk Management Policy for overall risk management
function. However, the Company follows Nepal Rastra Bank’s Risk Management Guidelines, 2010
in order to provide a framework for ensuring setting up of systematic Risk Management function
at Shree Investment and Finance Company limited. NRB's “Risk Management Guidelines, 2010" is
a foundation stone towards identification, measurement, monitoring and control of all the major
risks that the company is exposed. “Risk Management Guidelines, 2010” of the NRB provides
guidance for designing the Risk Management Process and the same includes policies, standards,
methodologies, procedures and limits for the implementation of the process.

iv. Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Company has appropriate internal control framework in
place that supports the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the
Company should be looked upon with a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place
during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities,
avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and
control/monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively implemented the same at the
Company.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Audit (outsourced to external party).

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the Company through regular audit, Off Site review, AML/CFT/KYC audit
and Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audits observations are reported to the Chief
Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures. Internal Audit
reports are periodically forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues
appropriate corrective action in accordance with the issue involved to the respective department,
regional offices or branch offices.

v. Riskldentified and its mitigation
B Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principal and reward associated with it due to failure of
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Company in accordance with agreed
terms. The Credit Policy Guideline have been prepared in order to mitigate/minimize the credit
risk of the Company through appropriate monitoring and reporting framework established within
the Company.

Company has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective
management of Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the company, following
activities were carried out:
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Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated were gone through;

« Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked against Risk
Appetite, tolerance limit mentioned in Respective Product Paper Guidelines and Credit
Policy;

«  Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Monitoring Report, Loan
Overdue Report, Loan Report, NRB reports and risk assessment reports.

Risk Management Committee (RMC) is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors
hence Overall strategy as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly.
Further, Senior Management is responsible for implementing the company’s credit risk
management strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage
and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

Company has following framework in place for the management of credit risk:
«  Board of Directors of the Company has approved Credit Policy.

The Board of Directors has approved product papers which need to be approved by the
Board of Directors as per regulatory requirement.

The Board level Risk Management Committee reviews various credit risks reported by the
management and recommends the Board for management of identified credit risk.

«  Credit Department directly manages accounts with sustained deterioration along with all
collection related activities.

Following major policies and procedural guidelines has been reviewed/approved and
implemented to manage the Credit Risk.

Credit Policy, 2070

«  Product papers for financing in personal Housing Loan, SME loan, Real Estate loan, Personal
Loan, Agricultural Loan, Business Finance Loan, Deprived Sector Loan, Education Loan, Hire
Purchase Loan, Share Loan.

«  Loan Write off Bylaws, 2073
Guidelines on Small and Medium Enterprises Loan

Further, the Company has Credit Departments in place which are responsible for performing
prescribed activities related to credit. Primary responsibility for management of credit risk lies
with the Credit departments. Department is also responsible to perform the activities as per
existing internal control system established in line with the prescribed policies, guidelines and
procedures for management of credit risk.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors Hence Overall
strategy as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior
Management is responsible for implementing the Company’s credit risk management strategies
and policies and ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and
the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

i. Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Company has financial assets consisting mainly of loans & advances and investments at
amortized cost. In these cases, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
the related financial assets.

ii. Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired nor past due or impaired

The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets exposed to
credit risk, based on the Company’s internal credit rating system.
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NPR in million

Financial Assets

Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalent 653 - - - - 653
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 208 - - - - 208

Placement with Bank and Financial = - - - - _
Institutions

Loans and advances 5,409 36.25 5.83 15 12.65 5,479
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments. - - - - - -
Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Investment securities 2,536 - - - - 2,536
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -

Total 8,807 36 6 15 13 8,877

B Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks
for the company. Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions of the Company and is
influenced by all resources, including human resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed
by the Company to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal
and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical
infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers,
inadequacy in procedures or flawed process designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in
any business function or the business supporting functions.

The Company is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical
business practices and therefore to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events
and is in a sound position to deal effectively with those events that do occur. The actions of the
board and senior management, and policies, processes and systems provide the foundation for a
sound risk management culture

Company seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use of key control standards, key
control self-assessments and key risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control
operational risk events through timely acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying
vulnerabilities. The Company shall also ensure highest level of governance standards and
adherence to Code of Conduct and robust compliance to all regulatory as well as the Company’s
internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

Effective policies, procedural guidelines and standard operating procedure are crucial tools for
sound risk management. Therefore, adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures
and their effective implementation is closely monitored by the department to ensure that they
have continuing relevance in line with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk
environment of the industry.
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Following major existing Policies/ guiding documents having close bearing with management
of operation risk has been reviewed/approved and implemented:

++ Operating Manual for Cash Department, 2066

« Branch/ Department Establishment and Operation Policy, 2073

« KYC Policy and Manual, 2073

« Internal Audit Manual, 2065

+ Investment Policy, 2070

+« Financial Administration By-law, 2073

< Employee Service By-laws, 2074

+ Election By Laws, 2064

« Computer and Information Policy and Manual, 2066

«* Money laundering Policy and Manual, 2073

« Cash Management Manual, 2066

+ Policy and Procedural guidelines for Anti-Money Laundering, 2076
« Operation Guidelines, 2076

+ Operation Guidelines on Saving Account of each Nepali Citizens, 2076
+ Internal Audit Directive 2065

+«+ Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 2075

«* Mobile Banking Policy 2078

+ Removeable Media Policy 2078

+ Business Continuity/ Disaster Recovery Plan

B Market Risk & Liquidity Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Company resulting from movements in market prices, in
particular, changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices.
Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions arising from
movements in market prices. The risks subject to this requirement are:

a. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

b. Currency Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience
volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial
losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and
its reporting currency.

¢.  Equity Price Risk: Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those
arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The major sources of market risk for the company are interest rate risk, currency risk and
equity price risk. Company identifies and manage these risks as per the laid down policies and
procedures. The company regularly assess and monitor the financial position and transaction
of the Company. Movement of Company’s interest yield, cost and spread is calculated and
analyzed on daily basis to identify, assess and mitigate possible risk exposure.

In order to evaluate the liquidity position, Company has been calculating and evaluating
liquidity ratio. Major inflows/outflows having impact on the liquidity is monitored. Transactions
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which have material impact on the liquidity position of the Company are communicated without
any delay to relevant department that manages fund. Also, regulatory limit of credit deposit position
is also monitored.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on an undiscounted
cash flow basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when
liquidity outgo arises, taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the
business.

Amount in NPR Million

3t06 6 months
months | to1year

Particulars

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 653 - - - 653
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 208 - - - 208

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - - -

Derivative financial instruments. - - - - _

Other trading assets - - - - -
Loans and advances 1,331 553 1,935 1,659 5,479
Investment Securities 2,536 - - - 2,536

Investment in subsidiaries - - R i _

Investment in associates = - - - -

Other assets 9 - - - 9
Total 4,738 553 1,935 1,659 8,886
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 335 - - - 335
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 867 - - - 867
Derivative financial instruments - - - -
Deposits from customers 809 350 1,566 3,693 6,418
Borrowing - = - - -
Other liabilities 79 - - - 79
Debt securities issued - - - -
Total 2,091 350 1,566 3,693 7,699
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5.2 Capital Management

5.2.1Qualitative disclosures
The Company assesses and maintains primary and secondary capital as per Form No 1.1 and 1.2 provided
in NRB Directive 1.

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is
meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the Nepal Rastra Bank. The adequacy of the Company'’s
capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by the Basel Committee
and adopted by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Company'’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and sustain the future development of the business.

The Company has complied with Capital Adequacy requirement of the Nepal Rastra Bank.
The Company’s regulatory capital consists of the following elements

Tier 1 Capital or Core Capital, which includes Paid Up Capital, Statutory General Reserves, Capital
Redemption Reserve, Retained Earnings and deductions of Deferred Tax Assets, Miscellaneous
expenditure not written off, Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Tier 2 Capital or Supplementary Capital, which includes General Loan Loss Provision, Exchange
Equalization Reserves, Subordinated Term Debt, Investment Adjustment Reserve, Other Reserve

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Finance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum paid
up capital of NPR 800million by mid-July 2017. As on the reporting date, the Company’s paid up capital
stood at NPR 958.67 million (Previous Year NPR 890.13 million) and is in compliance with the requirement.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures

a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

Paid up Equity Share Capital 958,675 890,135
Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares - -
Share Premium - -
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - -
Statutory General Reserves 244,664 225,037
Retained Earnings 74,592 99,438
Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) - -

owQu —+~ o O N T

Capital Redemption Reserve - -

Capital Adjustment Reserve - -
Dividend Equalization Reserves - -

=~ —

Other Free Reserve - -

Less: Goodwill - R
Less: Deferred Tax Assets - -

3

Less: Fictitious Assets - -

>

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -
Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests - -

o T O

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits > =
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This Year Previous Year
r  Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments
s Less: Reciprocal crossholdings - -
t  Less:Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 70,302 70,302
u Less: Other Deductions - -
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP 6.4a(1) Less: Shortfall in Provision - -

SRP 6.4a(2) Lesss Loans & EaC|I|t|es gxtended to related ) ]
parties and restricted lending

Core (Tier 1 Capital) 1,207,629 1,144,308

ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

E N
(NPR in ‘000) (NPR in ‘000)
a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share
b Subordinated Term Debt - -
(6 Hybrid Capital Instruments = -
d General loan loss provision 70,982 58,666
® Exchange Equalization Reserve S -
f Investment Adjustment Reserve 849 849
g Asset Revaluation Reserve - -

h

Other Reserves - -

Total Supplementary Capital 71,831 59,515

The Company has not issued any subordinated term debt.

iii. Total qualifying capital

Particulars This Year Previous Year
(NPR in ‘000) (NPR in ‘000)

a Core Capital 1,207,629 1,144,308
b Supplementary Capital 71,831 59,515
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 1,279,460 1,203,823

IV. Capital Adequacy Ratio

This Year Previous Year
Ratio (%) Ratio (%)

A Core Capital 19.07 23.67
B Supplementary Capital 1.14 1.23
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 20.21 24.90

v. Summary of Company’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable

The Company prepares Budget and Strategy and to achieve the long term plans the Company
prepares annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans as stipulated in the Budget Policy and strategy
Document of the Company. To ensure that the Company’s capital adequacy commensurate to
demand of the Company'’s capital required by the business planning, the Management and the
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Board prudently and proactively engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment,
stress testing and scenarios testing, monitoring and reporting.

The Company follows Stress Testing Guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in order to assess
the vulnerability of the Company under various stress situations typically, application of “what
if” scenarios, especially in the problematic identification of low frequency but high severity
events and identifying expected and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact
of large, but still plausible events and understanding the overall risk profile in a coherent and
consistent framework, including impact analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.

vi. Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially
in case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of
NPR 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b) Risk Exposures

i. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

A Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 5,609,914
B Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 453,968

C  Amount to be maintained for Market Risk
Total Risk Weighted Exposure (Before adjustments of pillar Il) 6,063,881

Adjustments under Pillar Il

Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of gross income. 85,314
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 3% of RWE 181,916
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 6,331,112
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
At the month end of Ashadh, 2079
(Rs. in 000)

0 Risk
Book Value Specific | pioible CRM | NetValue | RiskWeight | Weighted
A. Balance Sheet Exposures Provision Exposures

—-_—m—

Cash Balance 79,706 79,706

Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 208,196 208,196 0%
Gold 0%
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities 2,334,350 2,334,350 0%
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0%
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0%
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA 0-1) 0%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -2) 20%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -3) 50%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-4-6) 100%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -7) 150%
Claims On BIS, IME ECB, EC and MDB’s ™
recognized by the framework

Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks 100%
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities 100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 20%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 50%.
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 150%
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital

adequacy requirements 573,741 573,741 20% 114,748.20
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet 100%
capital adequacy requirements

Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 20%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 50%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 100%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 150%

Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC
region operating with a buffer of 1% above their 20%
respective regulatory capital requirement

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating

80%

score equiv. to AAA)
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating 45%
score equiv. to AA+ to AA-) ’
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating 90%
score equiv. to A+ to A-) '
Claims on Domestic Corporates (Credit rating L00%
0

score equiv. to BBB+& below)
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A. Balance Sheet Exposures

Claims on Domestic Corporates (Unrated)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6)
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7)
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue)

Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail
except granularity

Claims secured by residential properties
Claims not fully secured by residential properties

Claims secured by residential properties
(Overdue)

Claims secured by Commercial real estate

Past due claims (except for claims secured by
residential properties)

High Risk claims
Lending Against Securities (Bonds)

Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions listed in stock
exchange

Investments in equity and other capital
instruments of institutions not listed in the stock
exchange

Staff loan secured by residential property

Interest Receivable/claim on government
securities

Cash in transit and other cash items in the process
of collection

Other Assets (as per attachment)
TOTAL (A)

B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures

Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter
guarantee domestic counterparty

Other Contingent Liabilities

Irrecoverable Credit Commitments (Short Term)
Irrecoverable Credit Commitments (Long Term)
TOTAL (B)

Total RWE for credit Risk Before Adjustment
(A) +(B)

Adjustments under Pillar II

Book Value

1,312,797

1,714,775

99,050

900,238

5,073
694,218
28,290
410,700

364,647

97,709

752

40,690

31,188

183,845
9,079,967

Book Value

800

254
111,582
798,257
910,894

9,990,860

Specific

Provision

209,080

21,550

1,001
22,552 209,080

Specifi
PECTIC ™ Bligible CRM
Provision

22,552 209,080

SRP 6.4a(3) - Add 10% of the loans & facilities in excess of Single Obligor Limits to RWE

SRP 6.4a(4) - Add 1% of the contract (sale) value in case of the sale of credit with recourse to RWE

Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank’s
adjustments under Pillar II

9,990,860

22,552

209,080

d=a-b-c
1,312,797

1,505,695

99,050

900,238

5,073
694,218
6,739
410,700

364,647

97,709

752

40,690

31,188

182,844
8,848,335

Net Value

800

254
111,582
798,257
910,894

9,759,229

9,759,229

Eligible CRM Risk Weight

IS R

100%
20%
50%

100%

150%
75%

100%

60%
150%

100%
100%
150%
150%

100%

100%

150%
50%
0%

20%

100%

Risk Weight

40%

100%
20%
50%

Risk

Weighted
Exposures

e

1,312,797

1,129,271

99,050

540,143

5,073
694,218
10,109
616,050

364,647

97,709

1,129

20,345

182,844
5,187,894

RWE

320

254
22,316
399,129
422,019

5,609,914

5,609,914

R0
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
At the month end of Ashadh, 2079

Particulars

Net Interest Income

Commission and Discount Income
Other Operating Income
Exchange Fluctuation Income

Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense
during the period

Gross income (a)
Alfa (b)

Fixed Percentage of Gross Income
[c=(axb)]

Capital Requirement for operational risk
(d) (average of c)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital require-
ment of 10%) in times (e)

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)]

(Rs. in '000)
Fiscal Year
2075/076 2076/077 2077/078
258,527.50 259,385.10 216,382.22
36,991.98 38,050.08 25,684.92
3,139.40 4,655.49 54,815.97
1,160.84 21,644.12 (12,501.71)
299,819.72 323,734.78 284,381.39
15% 15% 15%
44,972.96 48,560.22 42,657.21
45,396.79
10
453,967.94

SRP 6.4a (8) Adjustments under Pillar Il (If Gross Income for the last
three years is negative)

1

)

Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific
Provision) of releted month

Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5%
of net credit and investment)

Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement
of 11%) in times

Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g)
Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f+(g]

Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Amount in NPR ‘000’ Amount in NPR ‘000’

9.09

453,967.94

Provi-
sion

Restructured / Reschedule Loans

Sub Standard Loans 5,833
Doubtful Loans 14,876
Loss 12,654
Total NPAs 33,363

9,850 1,231 8,619
1,458 4375 6,480 1,620 4,860
7,438 7438 1,171 586 585
12,654 - 23,102 23,102 -
21,550 11,813 40,603 26,539 14,064
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

As at 16 July 2022

As at 15 July 2021

Assets

Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Loans and advances to customers

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments.

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.7

4.4

653,447,470
208,195,939

5,088,215,765
5,949,859,175

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Investment securities

Investment in subsidiaries

Liabilities

Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers

Debt securities issued

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments

4.8
41

4.17
4.18
4.2
4.24

4.19

2,536,429,204

2,536,429,204

334,861,438
867,441,661
6,417,561,607

7,619,864,706

653,447,470
208,195,939

5,088,215,765
5,949,859,175

2,536,429,204

2,536,429,204

334,861,438
867,441,661
6,417,561,607

7,619,864,706

494 287,541
212,315,251

4,287,464,301
4,994,067,093

2,441,864,964

2,441,864,964

658,619,490

5,884,292,468

6,542,911,958

Carrying : Carrying

494 287,541
212,315,251

4,287,464,301
4,994,067,093

2,441,864,964

2,441,864,964

658,619,490

5,884,292,468

6,542,911,958
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5.3.1 Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amount in NPR

Fair value

Hierarchy As at As at

15 July 2021

16 July 2022

(Level)
Fair Value through profit and loss
Financial Assets
Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -
Financial Liabilities
Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Financial assets
Investment securities at OCI

- Quoted equity securities 1 170,138,503 172,765,717
- Unquoted equity securities 3 752,500 752,500
Investment in subsidiaries - -
Total 170,891,003 173,518,217

Financial Instruments held at amortised cost

As at As at
16 July 2022 15 July 2021

Financial assets

Debt securities 3 - -
Government bonds 3 2,298,468,200 2,268,346,747
Government treasury bills 3 67,070,000 -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds 3 = =
Loan and advances to B/Fls 3 390,358,500 262,048,500
Loans and advances to customers 3 5,088,215,765 4,287,464,301
Accounts receivable 1,307,542 71,675,531
Accrued Income - -
Total 7,845,420,008 6,889,535,080
Financial liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 3 334,861,438 658,619,490
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 3 867,441,661 -
Deposits from customers 3 6,417,561,607 5,884,292,468
Borrowing 3 = =
Provisions 3 - -
Other liabilities 3 79,016,720 56,791,507
Debt securities issued 3 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 3 - -
Total 7,698,881,425 6,599,703,465
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5.4 Segment Analysis

5.4.1 General Information
The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8, Operating Segments.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the company’s top-level management, which is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

In NPR

Revenue from external customers 492,811,501 335,250,320 828,061,821
Intersegment revenues - - -
Net Revenue 492,811,501 335,250,320 828,061,821
Interest Revenue 468,111,002 320,267,240 788,378,242
Interest Expenses 355,337,954 216,420,592 571,758,546
Net Interest revenue 112,773,048 103,846,648 216,619,696
Depreciation and amortization 10,966,213 2,819,729 13,785,942
Segment profit/(loss) 96,418,612 30,002,531 126,421,143
Entity’s interest in the profit or loss of associates

accounted for using equity method

Impairment of assets 41,446,734 52,898,488 94,345,222
Segment assets 6,199,063,860 2,854,387,026 9,053,450,886
Segment liabilities 4,949,842,456 2,768,967,591 7,718,810,047
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5.4.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

In NPR
Revenue Amount
Total revenue for reportable segments 828,061,821
Other revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity’s revenues 828,061,821
Profit or loss
Total profit or loss for reportable segment 126,421,143
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amount -
Profit before income tax 126,421,143
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 9,053,450,886
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts -
Entity’s assets 9,053,450,886
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 7,718,810,047
Other liabilities -
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity’s liabilities 7,718,810,047
Information about geographical areas
Interest Income 78,569,545 528,437,499 76,132,077 100,248,524 4,990,598 788,378,242
Fees & Commission Income 2,520,288 26,019,755 3,068,231 3,870,243 487,938 35,966,454
Other Operating Income 44187 2,863,604 574,320 204,108 30,906 3,717,125
Total Revenue 81,134,019 557,320,858 79,774,628 104,322,874 5,509,441 828,061,821
Percentage (%) 9.80% 67.30% 9.63% 12.60% 0.67% 100.00%

5.4.4 Information about major customers
The Company does not have any major customers which accounts for more than 10% of entity’s
revenue.

5.5 Share Options and Share based Payment
The Company does not have a policy for share options to its employees. Similarly, during the year the
Company has not made any payments or settlements by issuing new shares to its employees.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment
Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28.

5.6.1 Income Tax Liability
The Company has received assessment order from Inland Revenue Department (IRD) on the
income tax return filed under self-assessment for the financial year2051/52, 2052/53, and
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2053/54assessing additional tax liability of Rs 1,070,247.98. The Company had appealed against
assessment order received from tax office in Revenue Tribunal depositing Rs 816,045.23 as
advance tax and security deposit. The case was decided in favor of the Company by Revenue
Tribunal on Chaitra 2059 and in certain aspects by Supreme Court. Letter was sent to Inland
Revenue Department, Babar Mahal for adjustment of remaining amount Rs 254,202.75 which
has been disclosed as Contingent liability in Note 4.28.

The Company has filed tax returns to the IRD up to the financial years 2077/78 under self-
assessment procedures and assessment up to FY 2074-75 has been completed by IRD.

5.7 Related Party Disclosures
The Company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Dinesh Raj Joshi Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Mamata Adhikari Director
Lilamani Neupane, Chief Executive Officer Key Managerial Personnel

5.7.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities
The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 6,53,000 during the fiscal year. There
were 13 Board Meetings conducted during the fiscal year.

The Chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 9,000 and NPR 8000 per meeting
respectively for Board meeting.

The composition of Board of Directors is as follows:

Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Dinesh Raj Joshi Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Mamata Adhikari Director

The Board Members have not been provided with any facilities other than meeting allowances.

5.7.2 Amount paid to Chief Executive Officer
The Board of Directors have reappointed Mr. Lilamani Neupane as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 2078/08/23 for the period of 4 years. CEO has been paid a total of NPR.
7,847,880 and has been provided vehicle facility for official purpose.

The Salary and benefits paid to the CEO are as follow:

4,262,741 426,274 982,750 2,176,115 - 7,847,880
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5.7.3 Compensation Details for Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel includes members of Management Committee of the Company and
includes the following members;

Name Designation
Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Dinesh Raj Joshi Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Mamata Adhikari Director
Lilamani Neupane Chief Executive Officer

The compensation paid to the Key Management Personnel’s as below:

1 Compensation to members of BOD 653,000
2 Compensation to CEO 7,847,880
Total of Key Management Personnel Compensation 8,380,880

5.8 Events after reporting date
The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or
non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books
with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible
financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2022 till the signing of this financial
statement on 15 December 2022.

5.9 Non-Banking Assets
Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the
disposal groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are
FVTOCI in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable. Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been
shown under investment property. It has been recognized at lower of fair value or amount due at the time
of assumption of NBA.

The likely recovery of Non-Banking Assets is remote; therefore, the NBA has been fully impaired since the
First Time Adoption date of NFRS i.e., 15 July, 2017.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies
described above.

In NPR
Kamal Khawas 13th July 2003 701,250 701,250
Shambhu Thapa 19th June 2008 300,000 300,000
1,001,250 1,001,250
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5.9.1. Movement of Non-Banking Assets

Outstanding Balance as at 16 July 2021 - -
Add: Assets accepted during the year - -
Less: Assets sold during the year - -
Less: Net Changes in fair value - =
Outstanding Balance as at 15 July 2022 - -

There has been no movement in the Non-Banking Assets during the period.

5.10 Maturity Analysis
Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or
settled. Trading assets and liabilities including derivatives have been classified to mature and/or be repaid
within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual maturities of the products. With regard to loans and
advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behavior as used for
estimating the EIR. Issued debt reflect the contractual coupon amortizations.

5.11 Maturity Analysis of Lease Assets and Liabilities
The Bank has recognized a right of use of asset and lease liability as per NFRS 16 Leases for the first time.
The right to use of assets and lease liability is the present value of the total lease payments up to the
contract date from the start of contract inclusive of any increments on the payment of the rent. The right
to use of assets is depreciated over the lease term on straight line basis. The lease liability is amortized over
the lease term.

As required by Para 53 of disclosure part of NFRS 16 Leases, following amounts shall be disclosed about
the leases of the company and the maturity analysis of lease liability is shown as below.

Initial recognition on 1st Shrawan 2078 34,120,613 34,120,613
Less: Depreciation (6,481,771)

Add: Interest Cost 2,720,611
Less: Total rental payment (7,454,105)
Balance 32nd Ashad 2079 27,638,842 29,387,119

The amount of depreciation on right of use assets and interest cost recognized in profit or loss amounts
to NPR 6,481,771 and NPR 2,720,611 for FY 2021/22 respectively. During the year, company has made
NPR 7,454,105 total rental payment. As a result of implication of NFRS, amount NPR 1,744,352 has been
additional charged interest expenses in SOPL. The Right of use assets and Lease liabilities amount to NPR
27,638,842 and 29,383,195 respectively as below :-

Right of Use Asset 27,638,842
Lease Liability 29,383,195
Right of Use Asset Depreciation 6,481,771
Interest Expense 2,720,611
Total Lease Expenses 9,202,382
Leases expenses charged in PL 7,454,105
Additional Lease expenses as per NFRS 1,748,277
Total Lease Expenses 9,202,382

Lease Equilization Reserve upto previous year amounting NPR 995,096 has been adjusted to Retained
Earnings due to adoption of NFRS 16 from this fiscal year.

ez TgTSHI aMN® Yfcrdad 009¢ /o]




(AU < AT T oo A )

> I SodNedioe BUs Bisollod P. fe.

Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

Earnings per share

The Company measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders
for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant
period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

Year ended Year ended
16 July 2022 | 15July 2021
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) 90,900,259 114,456,732

Weighted average of number of equity shares used in

- . . Nos. 9,586,750 8,901,349
computing basic earnings per share (b)

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100
each (a/b)

As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and
diluted EPS are equal for the period presented.

Rs 9.48 12.86

5.12 Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years are as follows.

NPR. ‘000
Particulars et Rt
16 July 2022 15 July 2021
Not collected for more than 5 years 243 503
Not collected up to 5 years 1,397 4,841
Total 1,640 5,344

5.13 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

e s | 2o 20207

Cost on deposit liabilities 8.10 7.67
Yield on loans and advances 10.46 10.64
Net spread 2.36 2,98

Above yield and cost is calculated based on the annual average volume of loans, investments, deposits,
government bonds and other bonds/borrowings.

5.14 Employees Training and Development Fund
NRB Circular 10/073/74 requires banks and financial institutions to incur expenses towards employee
training and development equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year's total staff expenses. The closing
balance of employees training and development fund is NPR 1,057,508. In the subsequent year, balance in
this fund will be reclassified to Retained Earnings and recognized as Personnel Expense in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

T s | Amounten)

Opening Balance -

Addition during the Year 1,381,759
Less: Training Expenses for the year 324,251
Charged to PL Account 1,057,508

5.15 Corporate Social Responsibility
NRB Circular 11/073/74 requires banks and financial institutions to create Corporate Social Responsibility
Fund and annually appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund. The fund is created
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towards covering the Company’s expense in CSR activities in the subsequent year. Accordingly, the
Company appropriated NPR 909,003 to this fund for the reported period. In subsequent year, balance
in this fund will be reclassified to Retained Earning and recognized as CSR Expense in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense- The expenses for the period on Corporate Social Responsibility

amounts to NPR 605,641.
Opening Balance 1,414,900
Add: 1% of Net Profit of this year 909,003
Less: Expenses for this year (605,641)
Closing Balance 1,718,262

5.16 Regulatory Reserve
As required by NRB directive # 4, the Company has created Regulatory Reserve and movement of reserve
during the year is as follows:

Interest Receivable 1,426,861 957,874 2,384,735
Investment Adj Reserve 848,893 - 848,893
Closing balance 2,275,754 957,874 3,233,628

Among total interest receivable as on year end amounting NPR 10,244,813, amounting NPR 6,459,518
has been impaired as bad loan and NPR 3,785,294 has been accrued to interest income. The amount
NPR 2,384,735 has been transferred to regulatory reserve after deducting staff bonus and tax portion as
regulatory requirement.

The company has not recovered any interest income (on cash basis) of previous year receivable during
the period of Shrawan 1-15, 2079. Therefore, the company do not require to transfer any amount in
Retained Earnings from Regulatory Reserve.

Further Deferred tax assets is now transferred from regulatory reserve to deferred tax liabilities on
subsequent calculation as there is deferred tax liabilities on financial statement for the period.

The movement on regulatory reserve over the reporting period in line with guidelines for publication
of Financial Statement, Dividend declaration and Annual General Meeting 2077 has been presented as:
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5.17 Provision for Employee Bonus
The Company has provided NPR 14,046,794 (Previous year NPR 18,300,365) as employee bonus computed
at 10% of profit before tax.

5.18 Proposed Distributions (Dividend and Bonus Shares)
The Board of directors in its meeting dated 15 December, 2022 has passed a resolution recommending
for distribution of bonus shares (stock dividend) at 2.40% and cash dividend at 5.20% of paid up capital
as at July 16, 2022.

Amount in NPR

| Particulas | 32Ashadh2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Cash Dividend Declared 49,851,100 29,374,716.25
Bonus Shares 23,008,200 68,540,120.50
Total 72,859,300 97,914,836.75

5.19 Other Additional disclosure
Business Continuity Loan

As of Ashad end 2079
Particulars
N/A

Business Continuity Loan N/A

As of Ashad end 2079
Particulars
108

107,065,887

Refinance Loan

Subsidized Loan

Subsidized Loan

5.20 Facility and discount provided to reduce the impact of Covid-19

The Covid- 19 pandemic has impacted most of the countries, including Nepal. The Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB) has announced several measures to ease the financial system stress, including enhancing system
liquidity, asset classification standstill benefit to overdue accounts where a moratorium has been
granted and relaxation in liquidity coverage requirement, among others. The Nepalese economy would
be impacted by this pandemic with contraction in industrial and services output across small and
large businesses. The Bank’s business is expected to be impacted by lower business opportunities and
revenues in the short to medium term. The impact of the Covid- 19 pandemic on bank’s results, including
credit quality and provisions, remains uncertain and dependent on the spread of COVID- 19, further
steps taken by the Government and the Central bank to mitigate the economic impact, steps taken by
the Bank and the time it takes for economic activities to resume at normal levels. The Bank’s capital and
liquidity position is strong and would continue to be the focus area for the Bank during this period.

The company has not recovered any interest income (on cash basis) of previous year receivable during
the period of Shrawan 1-15, 2079 as per the facility provided by NRB.
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2079 Ashar end
Customer Amount
Numbers (NPR’000)

Additional provision of 0.3% on the good loan category 1805 163,81
2 Additional grace period provided to under construction project N/A
3 5 % provision to restructing/rescheduling loan N/A
Additional 20% working capital loan to Covid affected loan N/A
5 Additional 10% term loan to Covid affected loan N/A
6 Additional 20% working capital loan with 5 % loan loss provision, N/A
matured but extended for additional 1 year to Covid affected loan
7 Additional 10% term loan with 5 % loan loss provision, matured N/A
but extended for additional 1 year to Covid affected loan
Loan and interest period extended for 2 years as per NRB directive
8 . N/A
2, section 44 (2)
9 Loan and interest period extended for 2 years as per NRB directive N/A

2, section 44 (2)
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5.21 Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5%
Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total shares during the year is as follows:

Promoter Shareholders

1 Sashi Raj Pandey 961,489 10.03 96,148,900
2 Dinesh Raj Joshi 772,962 8.06 77,296,200
3 Rabendra Raj Pandey 506,485 5.28 50,648,500
4 Chandra Lekha Pandey 455,003 4.75 45,500,300
5 Samson Jung Bahadur Rana 395,672 413 39,567,200
6 Saurav Pant 299,969 3.13 29,996,900
7 Nirmal Nath Pandey 162,598 1.70 16,259,800
8 Meeta Shah Rana 153,529 1.60 15,352,900
9 Govind Ballabh Bhatt 146,219 1.53 14,621,900
10 Rajesh Kumar Agrawal 116,052 1.21 11,605,200
11 Samaksha Nath Pant 113,452 1.18 11,345,200
12 Sujan Pant 109,842 1.15 10,984,200
13 Bimal Senchury 106,571 1.11 10,657,100
14 Dharma Raj Shrestha 97,026 1.01 9,702,600
15 Nawa Durga Trading Concern 90,988 0.95 9,098,800
16 Ambika Shah 88,816 0.93 8,881,600
17 Jyoti Kumari Sarawagi 78,856 0.82 7,885,600
18 Rana Bahadur Shah 76,125 0.79 7,612,500
19 Bishnu Prasad Upadhaya 66,316 0.69 6,631,600
20 Sanjay Man Baisyat 50,237 0.52 5,023,700
21 Adarsha Raj Pandey 48,559 0.51 4,855,900
Public Shareholders

22 Cit- Citizen Unit Scheme 134,926 1.41 13,492,600
23 Trishakti Jung Bahadur Rana 109,094 1.14 10,909,400
24 ng‘;f/:tl'_at'd Capital - Management 102,194 1.07 10,219,400
25 Sabina Malla Shah 66,561 0.69 6,656,100
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5.22 Principal Indicators

1. Net Profit/Gross Income Percent 18.08 19.50 15.30 17.15 11.53
2. Earnings Per Share (as per NPR 11.47 16.04 13.50 12.86 9.48
NAS 33 - Earning per Share)
3. Market Value Per Share NPR 383 157.00 159.00 489 299.00
4. Price Earning Ratio Ratio 33.39 9.79 11.78 38.03 31.53
5. Dividend (including bonus) 10.00 13.00 10.53 11.00 7.60
. Percent
on Share Capital
6. Cash Dividend on Share 8.77 10.65 3.16 330 5.20
. Percent
Capital
7. Interest Income/Loans and 14.25 15.41 15.48 14.40 14.15
Percent
Advances
8. Staff Expenses/Total 51.10 60.20 62.59 62.72 58.00
. Percent
Operating Expenses
9. Interest Expenses/Total 8.60 8.80 8.97 7.19 8.69
Percent

Deposits and Borrowings

10. Exchange Gain/Total Income  Percent - - - - -

11. Staff ~ Bonus/Total  Staff 37.26 33.17 2439 23.46 19.80
Percent
Expenses
12. Net Profit / Total Loan Percent 2.58 3.00 237 247 1.63
13. Net Profit / Total Assets Percent 1.85 217 1.72 1.45 1.00
14. Loans / Deposits Percent 95.77 93.31 89.77 73.91 84.67
15. Operating Expenses/ Total Percent 1.53 1.72 1.76 1.57 1.35
Assets
16. Capital Adequacy (On Risk
Weighted Assets)
Core Capital Percent 21.62 20.76 18.69 23.62 19.07
Supplementary Capital Percent 0.89 0.89 0.77 1.23 1.14
Total Capital Fund Percent 22.51 21.66 19.46 24.85 20.21
17. Liquidity (CRR) Percent 0.34 0.29 0.28 0.44 045
18. Net Non-Performing Credit/ . 0.17 0.14 0.67 0.89 0.60
. Ratio
Total Credit
19. Weighted Average Interest 4.60 4.90 4.81 493 4.71
Percent
Rate Spread
20. Book Net Worth NPR  (in 9,705 11,212 11,576 12,792 13,346
lakhs)
21. Book Net Worth per share NPR 120 138 140 144 139
22. Number of Shares No. 8,100,000 8,100,000 8,290,350 8,901,349 9,586,750
23. Number of Staff No. 68.00 82.00 83.00 80.00 79.00
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Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements

Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 653,447 653,447 - 0.00%
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 208,196 208,196 - 0.00%

Placement with Bank and
Financial Institutions
Derivative financial

instruments.

Other trading assets - -

Loan and advances to B/Fls 390,359 390,359 - 0.00%

Loans and advances to 5,092,083 5,088,216 (3,867)  -0.08% Prepaid benefit & NFRS Impairment
customers .

Investment securities 2,536,429 2,536,429 - 0.00%

Current tax assets 28,178 30,944 2,766 0.82% Changes in Profit & tax Calc.
Investment in subsidiaries - - -

Investment in associates

Investment property - = =

Property and equipment 108,149 135,788 27,639 25.56% NFRS 36 adjustment of Lease
Goodwill and Intangible assets 935 935 0

Deferred tax assets - - -

Other assets 7,565 9,137 1,572 20.77% Prepaid staff benefits
Total Assets 9,025,342 9,053,451 28,109

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial 350848 334,861 (15,986)  -4.56% Reclassification to deposit from
Instituions ' customers
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 867,588 867,442 (146)  -0.02%

Derivative financial

instruments

Deposits from customers 6,401,429 6,417,562 16,132 0.25% Reclassification
Borrowing - -

Current Tax Liabilities

Provisions - - -

Deferred tax liabilities 18,361 20,240 1,880 10.24%

Other liabilities 55,539 78,705 23,166  41.71% Liabilities under finance lease
Debt securities issued

Subordinated Liabilities - - -

Total Liabilities 7,693,764 7,718,810 41,178

Equity

Share capital 958,675 958,675 - 0.00%

Share premium - - -

Retained earnings 75139 74,592 (348)  -0.46% NFRS adjustments
Reserves 297,763 301,374 3412 115%  NFRSadjustments (Reg. Reserve)
Tota.l equity attributable to 1331577 1,334,641 3,064

equity holders

Total liabilities and equity 9,025,342 9,053,451 44,242
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As per
unaudited
Financial
Statement

Variance

As per Audited
Financial
Statement

Statement of Financial
Position

Reasons for Variance

Interest income 787,948 788,378 430 0.05%
Interest expense 571,766 571,759 (7) 0.00%
Net interest income 216,183 216,620 437 0.20%
Fee and commission income 35,316 35,966 650 1.84% Reclassification
Fee and commission expense 142 154 12 8.23% Reclassification
Net fee and commission 35174 35,813 639  100.00%
income '
Other operating income 7,535 3,717 (3,817)  -50.67% Reclassification
Total operating income 258,891 256,150 (2,742)  -1.06%
Impairment charge/(reversal) 7,440 20  028%
7419
for loans and other losses
Net operating income 251,472 248,710 (2762)  -1.10%
- 0, i i
e e 73567 70,931 (2,636) 3.58% Actuarial & Staff Loa.n prepaid
adjustments
Depreciation 7,304 13,786 6482  88.74% NFRS 16
Other operating expenses 42,244 37,572 (4672) -11.06% Reclassification
Operating profit 128,357 126,421 (1,936)  -1.51%
Non operating income/ i ® 0.00%
expense
Profit before tax 128,357 126,421 (1,936) -1.51%
Income tax 36,407 35,521 (886)  -243%
Profit /(loss) for the period 91,950 90,900 (1,050)  -1.14%
As per our report of even date
Ramesh Kathayat Lilamani Neupane Mamata Adhikari Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Dinesh Raj Joshi Sashi Raj Pandey
Director Director Director Chairman
Pratik Khanal
Place: Kathmandu Managing Partner
Date: December 15, 2022 P. &B. Associates
Chartered Accountants
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